
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Haringey Schools Forum 

 
 
THURSDAY, 22ND SEPTEMBER, 2011 AT 15:45 HRS FOR 16:00 HRS – HARINGEY 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT CENTRE, DOWNHILLS PARK ROAD, TOTTENHAM, 
LONDON, N17 6AR 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR    
 
2. CHAIR'S WELCOME    
 
3. MEMBERSHIP  (PAGES 1 - 2)  
 
 Clerk to report on any vacancies or change to the Membership of the Forum 

 
4. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS    
 
 Clerk to report. 

 
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Declarations are only required where an individual member of the Forum has a 

pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda. 
 

6. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 14 JULY 2011  (PAGES 3 - 10)  
 
7. MATTERS ARISING    
 
8. CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL FUNDING REFORM  (PAGES 11 - 46)  
 
 To inform Members of the Department for Education’s proposals for reforming the 

school funding system and to consider the proposed response. 
 

9. REVIEW OF FULL TIME NURSERY PLACES  (PAGES 47 - 50)  
 



 

2 

 To inform members of the position to date and future plans in reviewing full time 
nursery places. 
 

10. WORKING PARTY AND WORK PLAN UPDATE (VERBAL REPORT)    
 
11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
12. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 9 DECEMBER 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Last Updated September  2011 

 

 

Haringey Schools Forum 

Membership as at  September  2011 
 

 

Chair:- To be elected     Vice- Chair: To be elected 
 
Attendance: Quorum: 40% of membership       Term of Office: 3 years until 2012 
 
The constitution states that non attendance without apologies at three consecutive 
meetings results in disqualification of office. Apologies for absence should be submitted to 
the Clerk at carolynbanks73@hotmail.com or telephone GSTU on 0208 489 5030 
 

Schools’ Block 
 

Group 

 

No Headteachers 
(protocol for election of  Headteacher 

representatives  available) 

Governors 

Primary – 

Communit

y 

7 Evelyn Pittman, Tetherdown 

Cal Shaw, Chestnuts  

Jane Flynn, Alexandra Primary 

Chris Witham, Rhodes Avenue 

Maxine Pattison, Ferry Lane 

Will Wawn, Bounds Green 

Vacancy 

Laura Butterfield, Coldfall 

Nathan Oparaeche, St Mary’s CE 

Junior 

Louis Fisher, Earlsmead   

Sarah Crowe, Devonshire Hill 

Asher Jacobsberg, Welbourne  

Miriam Ridge Our Lady of Muswell 

Jeffrey Reynaud Earlham 

Children’s 

Centre 

  1 Val Buckett, Pembury House 

Nursery and Children’s Centre 

Melian Mansfield, Pembury House 

Nursery and Children's Centre 

 

Secondary 

– 

Communit

y  

4 Tony Hartney, Gladesmore 

Alex Atherton, Park View Academy 

Patrick Cozier, Highgate Wood 

Monica Duncan ,NPCS (substitute 

Mike Claydon) 

Imogen Pennell, Highgate Wood 

Sarah Miller, Gladesmore 

Ewan Scott, Alexandra Park 

Liz Singleton Northumbelrland PK 

Special 1 Martin Doyle, Moselle Vic Seeborun 

Academie

s 

 Paul Sutton, Greig City Academy  

  

Non-Schools’ Block 
 

Appointing Body 

 

No Forum Members 

Faiths Representative 1 Mark Rowland, St Thomas More  

Haringey Teachers’ Panel 

(protocol for election of 

representative available) 

1 Tony Brockman, Haringey Teachers’ Panel 

Substitute Julie Davies 

Support Staff Trade Unions 1 Pat Foward, Unison 

14-19 Partnership Board 1 June Jarrett, Haringey Sixth Form Centre 

LBH Councillor 1 Cllr Zena Brabazon    

Private, Voluntary and 

Independent Early Years 

Settings 

1 Susan Tudor-Hart 

 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Last Updated September  2011 

 

 

Observers Named Person 

Cabinet Member for Children and Young 

People 

Learning and Skills Council 

Haringey TPCT representative 

Lorna Reith 

Ruth Whittaker 

Vacancy 

 

Officers Clerk 

Peter Lewis            Director of The Children and Young 

                                   People’s Service 

Kevin Bartle            Head of Corporate Finance 

Neville Murton            Head of Finance for The Children and 

Young 

                                   People’s Service 

Steve Worth               Schools Funding Manager 

 

 Carolyn Banks 

 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING 
THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 
 
Present:         School Members 

 Headteachers:-Tony Hartney (Gladesmore) Andrew Wickham (Primary 
Community – Weston Park), Cal Shaw (Primary Community – Chestnuts), Jane 
Flynn (Alexandra Primary), Monica Duncan (Northumberland Park), Evelyn 
Pittman (Crowland), Will Warn ( Bounds Green). Olu Lampejo ( Greig City 
Academy) 

 
Governors:-  Liz Singleton (Secondary Community – Northumberland Park), 
Melian Mansfield (Children’s Centres (Pembury House),  Sarah Crowe 
(Devonshire Hill), Asher Jaconsberg (Welbourne), Imogen Pennell ( Highgate 
Wood), Vic Seeborun ( Special), Miriam Ridge (Our Lady of Muswell) 
 

  Non- School Members 
Tony Brockman (Chair), Haringey Teachers Panel, Susan Tudor- Hart, (EY   
Private and Voluntary Sector), Cllr Zena Brabazon, June Jarrett (Sixth Form 
Centre) and Pat Forward (Unison) 

 
 
In attendance: Councillor Lorna Reith, Neville Murton, Ben Brown and Carolyn Banks 
 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 

1. CHAIR’S WELCOME ( Agenda Item 1)  
 

 
 

        1.1 

 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. He reported that the 
outcome of the consultation on funding was still awaited from the 
Government and would be reported to the Forum at the next term. 
   

NM 

          2. MEMBERSHIP ( Agenda Item 2)  
 

 

        2.1 The Clerk reported that this was Andrew Wickham’s last meeting. 
Nominations were being sought from the Primary Headteachers. 
 
 There were no further vacancies. 
 

 
CB 

          3. APOLOGIES AND SUBSITITUTE MEMBERS ( Agenda Item 3)  
 

 

       3.1  Apologies for absence were received from Peter Lewis, Patrick Cozier, 
Mark Rowland, Sarah Miller, Martin Doyle, Laura Butterfield, Maxine 
Pattison, Val Buckett and Alex Atherton 
 

 

       3.2 Olu Lampejo substituting for Paul Sutton and Evelyn Pittman substituting 
for Hasan Chawdhry 
 

 

4.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 

 4.1       There were no declarations of interest.  

Agenda Item 6Page 3



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 2 

 

5. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 17 FEBRUARY 2011 (Agenda Item 
5)  

 

        5.1 

 

 

AGREED: The minutes of the meeting were agreed as a true record.  
In view of the difficulties of recalling details from meeting that had taken 
place some time ago the importance of ensuring that meetings were 
quorate was stressed.  
 

 

6. 

 

NOTES OF INQOURATE MEETINGS – 19 MAY AND 26 MAY 
2011(Agenda Item 5) – Matters Arising 
 

 

        6.1 19 May 2011 AGREED: That the notes of the meeting held on 19 May 
be noted subject to the correct spelling of Bill Barker (not Booker). 
 

 

        6.2 26 May 2011 – Min 2.4. It was noted that the officers Steering Group on 
full time places had met a couple of times, but the wider meeting had yet 
to happen. It was noted that completion was expected before April 2012 
and the proposals would be effective for September 2012. AW 
commented that should the outcome of the Group be a removal of full 
time places this would only give one terms notice. 
 

 
 
SW 

        6.3 Min 6.4 – NM reported that Stroud Green extended day provision was 
included as part of the £522,000 allocation. 

 
 
 

       7. CARBON REDUCTION COMMITMENT (Agenda Item 8)report for 

consultation and views 
 

 
 
 

        7.1 Ben Brown (BB) reported that the Carbon Reduction Commitment was a 
mandatory UK wide carbon trading scheme which required participants 
to report on their carbon emissions and was required to calculate and 
purchase carbon allowances each year. In order to cover emissions 
generated a tax of £12 per tonne was being charged for the first three 
years, rising to £14 in the fourth year and £16 in the fifth year and then 
rising on an accelerating scale.  Local Authorities were currently 
expected to take responsibility for both state schools and academies and 
were responsible for the purchase of allowances. 
 

 

        7.2 In response to a question by AW as to whether other than for the greater 
good whether there were any incentives for individual schools to reduce 
carbon usage it was noted that at present there was no way of rewarding 
individual schools by way of the formula. However the greater the 
savings the more would be retained in the DSG. BB advised that any 
carbon reduction by schools would be beneficial to them through a 
reduction in their utility bills.  
 

 

        7.3 With regard to schools without AMR (smart metering) proving a monthly 
submission of all meter readings the Council would provide a “Frequently 
Asked Questions” booklet to assist them. 
 

 
BB 

        7.4 Resolved: 
 

 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 3 

     1.  That officers reissue to schools the information brochure      
on   the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency 
Scheme. 

 
2. That the charges of circa £250,000 to be applied to the 

DSG,  prior to formula funding, resultant of the cost of 
carbon emitted by the school portfolio under the Carbon 
Reduction Commitment be noted. 

 
3. That the following actions be recommended to all schools 

to ensure compliance with the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment:- 

 

• All schools to review their utility supply contract 
status and ensure that, if not  on the Council’s 
corporate utility contracts, a letter of Authority had 
been received and returned to the Council ( it was 
noted that this had been actioned) 

• All schools not on the Council’s corporate utility 
contracts to evaluate their existing supply 
arrangements and consider opting into the 
Council’s corporate offering for ease of 
administration of the CRC and improved prices. 

• All schools without AMR (smart reading) to provide 
a monthly submission of all meter readings to the 
Council between the 21 and 28th of the month. 

• All schools apply for the Sustainable Investment 
Fund loan scheme to help reduce energy 
consumption and hence energy costs and CRC 
allowance purchases. 

 
 

 
BB 

       8 WRAP AROUND CHILDCARE PROVISION TRANSITIONAL FUNDING 
(Agenda Item 9) report for information 
 

 

        8.1 NM reminded the meeting that the Forum had agreed to set aside 
£522,000 as transitional funding for the 2011/12 financial year to smooth 
the transfer of wrap around childcare activities including after school and 
holiday clubs and breakfast clubs. Details of the principles to be 
deployed in the transitional funding were noted.  
 

 

        8.2 In response to a query from AW around sustainability NM advised that 
other schools not in receipt of any funding were able to offer childcare 
activities.  
 

 

        8.3 ZB referred to the anomaly at Stroud Green whereby they had been 
running two lots of provision funded by the play service and therefore 
there was an argument for them to receive double the funding allocation. 
Also she pointed out that Treetops was not funded through the DSG. 
However NM informed the Forum that Stroud Green had been treated 
the same as other schools and that in the past some provision had been 

 

Page 5



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 4 

funded through a different arrangement. It was now all wrapped up in the 
same way and there were no surpluses available. 
 

        8.4 MM expressed concern that as the transition funding was only for one 
year it presented a reduction in funding for future years and could led to 
provision being unsustainable without an increase in fees. She also 
asked whether were any proposals to monitor any impact of the funding 
changes such as lower attendance and possibly fewer schemes being 
available. She expressed concern over the impact that this could have 
on the life’s of vulnerable children and families that could not afford the 
increase in fees. NM replied that help was being provided to schools to 
be able to manage on a sustained basis. There were various models of 
provision in operation without this subsidy and an alternative to any 
increase in fees for would be for schools to provide funding from other 
resources. 
 

 

        8.5 Resolved:  
 

1. That the allocation to schools and the central funding of 
provision prior to transfer of after school and holiday 
childcare be noted. 

2. That the distribution of breakfast club funding be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

        9. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 2011-12 AND SCHOOL OUTTURN 
AND BALANCES 2010 -11 (Agenda Item 10) report for decision and 
information 
.   

 

        9.1 NM informed the Forum that the final allocation of DSG for 2011-12 had 
now been confirmed by the Department of Education at £208.503m 
 

 

        9.2 Details of the outturn position and the balances carried forward were 
noted. The position of decreasing balances was noted. 
 

 

        9.3 Balances on a school by school basis as at March 2011 were set out. In 
response to a query from Cal Shaw (CS)  in respect of the support and 
systems in place to help schools in difficulty with their budgets NM 
reported the Authority would work with any such schools and they  would 
be required to submit deficit recovery plans.  It was agreed that good 
practice from schools with positive budgets should be shared. 
 

 

        9.4 NM reported that although schools had the resources to undertake 
financial management the Authority had a responsibility to ensure that 
they lived within their budgets. Any schools unable to manage could buy 
into the Authority’s Schools Finance Trading SLA to help with their 
budget management. A brochure would be circulated to schools setting 
out all the details. 
 

 
 
 
 
NM 

        9.5 ZB asked how the deficits for some schools which had increased and 
were now quite substantial were going to be addressed. NM replied that 
the interventions available were limited, ranging from coercion and 
working with the school to removal of the delegated budget in extreme 
cases.  A number of schools had been issued with notices of concern, 

 

Page 6



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 5 

which would alert Governors of the situation. The ultimate sanction of 
removing the school’s delegated budget was a final option but would not 
be taken lightly.  
 

        9.6 In response to a question from AW as to what the extra allocation to the 
DSG would be spent on, NM replied that the money may need to be 
allocated to any in year adjustments needed to the DSG as a result of 
any schools converting to academies mid year.  Cllr Reith advised that 
there could be further implications from the recent announcement by the 
Education Secretary to close 200 of the worst performing primary 
schools and reopen them as academies.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

        9.7 In the event of the additional DSG money not being required for any in 
year adjustments it was likely to be retained as a carry forward.   
 

 

        9.8 The Forum noted that schools with substantial balances may have plans 
for its utilisation, such as Rowland Hill and Pembury intended to spend 
their balances on a new roof. 
 

 

 Resolved: 
  

1. That the final position on the DSG be noted. 
2. That the 2010-11 outturn position be noted. 
3. That the position on the Schools’ balances as at March 2011 

be noted. 
4. That a Panel of Cal Shaw, Sarah Crowe, Tony Brockman, 

Melian Mansfield, Will Warn and Asher Jaconsberg be 
convened to agree allocations from the contingency. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NM/CB 

       10. ARRANGEMENTS FOR FREE SCHOOL MEALS (Agenda Item 11) 
report for information 
 

 

      10.1 It was a requirement for the Authority to consult with the Forum on the 
arrangements for free school meals. It was noted that the subsidy 
provided by the Authority towards the cost of paid meals for primary 
aged pupils was £0.22 for 2011/12.  
 

 

     10.2 AW stated that the current subsidy had remained the same for a number 
of years and therefore was a year on year reduction. Consequently there 
should not be an annual roll over. It was agreed that further 
consideration be given to this matter in the budget strategy.  
 

 
 
 
NM 

 Resolved: 
 

That the report be noted and the continuation of the          
arrangements as set out in the report be agreed. 
 

 

11. ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE 
CHAIR(s) (Agenda item 12) report for decision 
 

 

Page 7



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 6 

 NM reported on the proposed arrangements for the election of the Chair 
and Vice Chair to be held at the Forum’s next meeting.  

 

 Resolved:-  
 

1. That the process by which the Chair/Vice Chair are elected 
and the intention to carry out the election at the meeting of 
the Forum scheduled for 22 September 2011 be agreed. 

2. That nominations for the positions of Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Forum be notified to the clerk by no later than 13 
September 2011. 

3. That the Clerk remind all Forum members at the beginning of 
the Autumn Term that nominations should be received by 13 
September. 

4. That the term of office for the Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Forum be for a period of one year. 

5. That there be one Vice Chair of the Forum for the 
forthcoming period of election. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CB 

       12.  BRIEFING ON ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS BY HARINGEY SCHOOLS ( 
Agenda item 13) report for information 
 

 

     12.1 In response to instances of cheque fraud alternative methods for 
payment of good and services were being explored.  
 

 

     12.2 At present two alternatives were being investigated, either for Haringey 
payments to be deducted from a schools monthly cashflow or through 
electronic payment (ie BACS), which was the preferred option. It was 
noted that RM had developed the BACS payment facility based on the 
required file being provided by Lloyds bank. Other banks would need to 
approached for access to their BACS software.  Further work would be 
undertaken with RM on costs and a further report presented to the 
Forum in due course. The Authority hoped that schools would wish to 
find an alternative solution to cheque payments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SW 

     12.3  AW offered the services of Weston Park for any pilot scheme. June 
Jarrett informed the meeting that the Sixth Form College was setting up 
a BACS system of payments for implementation early next term and she 
offered to report back to the Forum on its success. 
 

 
 
JJ 

 Resolved:  
 

That the Authority’s recommendation for BACS payments to be         
introduced as soon as possible be noted and in the interim 
schools be offered the facility of cashflow deduction. 

  

 

       13. WORKING PARTY AND WORK PLAN UPDATE 
 

 

 There was no update on this item.  
 

 

        14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 

Page 8



MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 THURSDAY 14 JULY 2011 

 7 

      14.1 Chair’s position:-The Chair reported that although he was leaving 
Haringey’s employment in September he had offered to remain as the 
teachers’ panel representative on the Forum.  
 

 

     14.2  Retirement of Andrew Wickham: - The Chair reported that this was 
Andrew Wickham’s last Forum meeting. Andrew had been appointed as 
the first and only Headteacher of Weston Park School which he had built 
up into a very successful school.  Andrew had also taken a wider role in 
supporting other Headteachers as a School Improvement Partner. He 
had played an important role on the Forum asking questions and 
presenting challenge and having only missed one meeting. Andrew was 
thanked for his contribution and passion for improvements. 
 

 

     14.3 Andrew replied that he had enjoyed working with all Forum members. He 
stated that the Forum had changed significantly since its inception, 
becoming significantly more important asking questions and holding the 
Authority to account. He referred to the significant work of the Forum in 
relation to the Area Cost Adjustment campaign. AW was invited to attend 
the next meeting of the Forum. 

 

      15. VOTE OF THANKS  

 Tony Brockman was thanked for Chairing the Forum for this year. 
 

 

 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING – 22 September 2011  

  
The Chair thanked everyone for attending and closed the meeting. 

 

 

The meeting closed at 5.25 pm 

 

 

 

 

 

TONY BROCKMAN  

Chair 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 

The Children’s Service 
 

Report to Haringey Schools Forum Thursday 22 September 2011  
 

 
Report Title: Consultation on School Funding Reform. 
 

 
Authors:   
 
Neville Murton Head of Finance for the Children’s Service. 
 
Telephone: 020 8489 3176                   Email: Neville.murton@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Steve Worth Finance Manager (Schools). 
 
Telephone: 020 8489 3708                     Email: 
Stephen.worth@haringey.gov.uk 
 

 
Purpose:  
 

1. To inform members of the Department for Education’s proposals 
for reforming the school funding system. 

 
2. For members to consider the proposed responses.   

 

 
Recommendations:  
 

1. That members agree the proposed response to the consultation. 
 

 

 

Agenda Item  
8 

Report Status 
 
For information/note   oooo  
For consultation & views  ⌧    
For decision   oooo 

  

Agenda Item 8Page 11



 
1. Background and Introduction. 
 
1.1. The previous government began consultation on changes to the national 

system for funding schools. The present Government has continued 
down this path and recently issued its second consultation document 
with a response deadline of 11 October 2011 

 
1.2. Annex 1 is a briefing paper setting out the main elements of the 

consultation. Annex 2 sets out the questions posed in the document and 
our draft responses 

 
2. Recommendations. 
  

2. That members agree the proposed response to the consultation. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
Annex 1 

 
Consultation on School Funding reform – Briefing Note 

 
1. Introduction. 
 
1.1. The government has published a consultation document on school 

funding reform; ‘proposals for a fairer system’. The consultation 
document was issued on 19 July 2011 as part of three consultations 
issued at that time, the other two documents on changes to the capital 
system and the basis for the academies LACSEG ‘topslice’ are dealt 
with separately. 

 
1.2. This briefing note considers only the proposals covered in the document 

entitled ‘School funding reform: proposals for a fairer system’ which runs 
until 11 October 2011. A response will be developed for consideration by 
the Schools Forum; their next meeting is scheduled for 22 September 
2011. This consultation follows on from a similar consultation undertaken 
earlier in 2011 on ‘Rationale and Principles’. 

 
1.3. The consultation document is structured into 9 chapters as below and 

this note follows that format: 
 

• The National Funding System. 

• The Schools Block – system. 

• The Schools Block – formula content. 

• Central Services and defining responsibilities 

• Future arrangements for the Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent 
Grant (LACSEG) 

• Children and Young People requiring high levels of support. 

• Early Years. 

• Pupil Premium. 

• Timing for Implementation 
 
1.4. In setting the scene the government concludes from its earlier 

consultation that there is widespread support for reforming the school 
funding system and sets out four criteria for the new system: 

 

• Supports the needs of pupils; 

• Is clear and transparent; 

• Enables schools and Academies, sponsors and Free School proposers 
to make informed decisions about their provision; and 

• Enables schools and Academies to be funded on a broadly comparable 
basis. 

 
1.5. It also acknowledges a continuing role for Local Authorities and Schools 

Forums. 
 

Page 13



1.6. The consultation document does not provide any exemplifications and so 
it is difficult to draw specific conclusions, although it does refer to more 
detailed proposals on the new system and sets out the intention to run a 
‘shadow settlement’ in 2012-13. This confirms that they will not 
implement any changes before 2013-14 and, in the later part of the 
consultation document, establishes a proposal to implement changes 
gradually so as to allow stability in school budgets as changes are made. 

 
1.7. The overview of the proposals sets out the intention for: 
 

• A national formula for funding Local Authorities which will comprise three 
main blocks: 
Ø Early Years; 
Ø High Needs Pupils 
Ø Schools. 

• Plus a smaller forth block for centrally retained services currently in the 
Schools Budget. 

 
It is intended that the Schools Block will comprise of: 

Ø A basic amount per pupil; 
Ø Additional funding for deprivation; 
Ø Additional funding for small schools; and 
Ø An adjustment for areas with higher labour costs (An Area Cost 

Adjustment). 
 

• Simplification of allowable factors for local Authorities to use in their own 
formulae; 

• Continuation of a simpler Early Years Funding Formula; 

• Continuation of formula replication for Academies by either the new 
Education Funding Agency (EFA) or the Local Authority. 

• Continuation of the Pupil Premium as a separate funding stream for this 
Spending Review period albeit increased in value and potentially 
extended. 

 

Overall there are a number of questions raised by the consultation 
summary which are considered in more detail in the appropriate chapter 
however, it is important to note that the rhetoric about a National 
Funding Formula might be more accurately be referred to as a return to 
an Standard Spending Assessment (SSA) Formula Spending Share 
(FSS) approach which existed previously. Although there is a 
suggestion of the government calculating a formula at an individual 
school level and aggregating them for each authority this is not strongly 
put forward instead the paper argues for a continuing role for local 
Authorities and Schools Forums. This is to be welcomed as any move to 
a national calculation of school budget would reduce local discretion 
and cause unnecessary work in explaining to schools why the local 
formula is different to any nationally calculated budget amount which 
might be viewed as an entitlement. 
 

Page 14



The approach taken to recognising the inconsistent treatment of 
Haringey (and five other Boroughs) for Area Cost purposes is 
encouraging, particularly given the significant across the board support 
for the hybrid (now referred to as ‘combined approach’) to the ACA in 
the last consultation. It is however disappointing in that context that the 
proposals are not scheduled to take effect until 2013-14 at the earliest 
and then subject to transitional arrangements that may delay full 
implementation for some time even after that. Given the proposed use of 
a shadow settlement in 2012-13 we should argue that schools can begin 
to make adjustments now to accommodate any funding reductions, 
allowing the effects of the new formula to happen quicker. 
 
It is clear that in general the proposals are not particularly radical, with 
the possible exception of those necessary to integrate Academy funding 
more transparently, marking a return to a simplified version of what 
existed prior to the ‘spend plus’ approach being implemented in 2006-
07. What is also clear however, is that some of the criticisms of the 
current system are a result of measures implemented over time and 
likely to continue – for example the case of similar schools receiving 
very different levels of funding is in part at least caused by the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee (MFG) which is assumed to continue as a way of 
managing turbulence in school budgets. 
 
It is clear that the complication of Academies being funded on an 
Academic Year basis causes difficulties in maintaining transparency 
with maintained schools funded on a Financial Year basis but there are 
no proposals to standardise either way in this consultation. The option 
of Authorities themselves calculating budgets for Academies on behalf 
of the new Education Funding Agency (EFA) is interesting given that it 
must call into question the value of the EFA. 

 
2. Chapter 1 – The National Funding System 
 
2.1. The national funding system described marks a return to a formula 

based allocation based on authority’s relative needs i.e. similarly to the 
previous Standard Spending Assessment (SSA) or (schools) Formula 
Spending Share (FSS). It moves us away from the spend plus 
methodology which has existed since 2006-07 and which is in itself 
rooted in the spending decisions of authorities in 2005-06. The proposed 
formula for the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is however a simple one 
consisting of four blocks: 

 

• Schools; 

• Early Years; 

• High Needs pupils; and 

• Non-delegated services. 
 
2.2. The DSG will continue to be ring-fenced although movement between 

blocks will be allowed subject to the on-going constraints imposed by the 
Central Expenditure Limit (CEL) i.e. money retained centrally cannot rise 

Page 15



faster than that for the schools’ budget without approval from the 
Schools Forum. 

 
2.3. The proposal moves us away from having a single Guaranteed Unit of 

Funding covering all services provided through the DSG to a formulaic 
approach for each of the blocks. Chapter 4 sets out the detailed 
proposals for how the blocks are to be determined and the services that 
they are designed to cover. 

 
2.4. The paper proposes moving to a formulaic allocation over time but gives 

no timeframe for this to happen. It also identifies 2012-13 budgets as the 
starting point meaning that the S251 statement for that year is of critical 
importance. 

 
2.5. The paper offers two options for calculating the Schools Block and seeks 

views on preferences. The options are to calculate a budget for each 
school based on its pupils nationally and then aggregate these for each 
Local Authority “School-level” or to calculate a budget for each authority 
based on all pupils in the LA area “Local Authority-level”. Each Authority 
in consultation with its School Forum would then devise its own 
formulae, as now and in accordance with regulations. 

 
2.6. The proposals for the Early Years and high Needs Pupil Blocks are 

covered in later chapters. 
 

The blocks proposed are simple and seem logical, although the relative 
value of each of them will be very important. Although it is clearly stated 
that resources can be moved between each block (subject to constraints 
such as the Central Expenditure Limit) there will be significant pressure 
– as there was under the previous SSA regime – to reflect the relative 
allocation of the blocks within the relevant services i.e. the resources 
set out in the Early Years block might be considered analogous with the 
Early years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) by some. 

 
3. Chapter 2 – The Schools Block - System 
 
3.1. This chapter considers how the schools block will be derived both for 

local Authorities and then, subsequently, for schools in each LA area. 
 
3.2. It notes that 72% of respondents to the earlier consultation thought that 

there should be some or a lot of local discretion in distributing funding to 
schools and that the DfE have therefore given ‘considerable thought to 
how we can implement a system which enables local circumstances to 
be considered, yet secures national consistency so that all schools – are 
funded on a fair and comparable basis.’ 

 
3.3. One proposal in making the funding system clear and comparable is to 

limit the scope and amount of what can be included in a local formula. 
Allowed factors may be: 

 

Page 16



• Basic entitlement per pupil, 

• Funding for additional educational needs (e.g. deprivation, SEN, 
EAL), 

• Rates, 

• Exceptional site factors, 

• Lump sums. 
 

3.4. A limit may also be placed on the weightings applied to age differences 
and deprivation. In allocating funding to local authorities the DfE will use 
fixed amounts for primary and secondary pupils. The consultation 
document acknowledges that actual weightings vary considerably 
between LAs and whilst the DfE does not want to introduce turbulence 
neither does it want significant differences between LAs. It therefore 
proposes to allow variations within certain tolerances. 

 
3.5. The DfE proposes two options for simplifying the formula element of the 

General Annual Grant payable to Academies: either the LA will calculate 
budgets for all schools in the area and tell the Education Funding 
Agency (EFA) how much to allocate to an academy; or the EFA will 
calculate an academy’s budget share based on a pro-forma describing 
the local formula that all LAs will be required to complete. 

 
3.6. The DfE are also proposing strengthening the role of Schools Forums 

and/or the constituencies they represent in relation to proposed formula 
changes, either by requiring individual agreements from each constituent 
group or the power to agree the formula. 

 
3.7. The DfE are also proposing to give the EFA a role in checking that LA 

formulas comply with national guidelines and a review role on behalf of 
any schools and academies that feel the decisions made by their local 
authority have been taken without due consultation are unfair or biased. 

 
3.8. The consultation document questions whether to continue funding free 

schools based on their local authority’s average funding per pupil and 
the average funding per deprived pupil or to move to the academy 
system which attempts to replicate almost the complete local formula. 
The new categories of New University Technical Colleges and Studio 
Schools will be funded as free schools and will be entitled to LACSEG. 
An exception to this will be if the Studio School is part of a larger 
institution. 

 

The proposal to attempt to introduce standardised weightings between 
sectors may well cause issues in Haringey where the Secondary 
weighting in particular recognises class sizes of 27 and 20% contact 
ratios that will have had a significant effect on the overall weightings 
and therefore has potential for turbulence in funding levels. 

 
4.   The Schools Block - formula content. 
 

Page 17



4.1. The two options considered are a school based formula, calculated at 
school level and then aggregated at LA level, or a pupil based formula 
calculated at LA level. The distribution to individual schools would then 
be through the locally agreed funding formula, as constrained by national 
guidelines  

 
4.2. The proposed new formula would have the following factors: 
 
4.2.1. A basic per pupil entitlement. The DfE plan a balanced assessment 

review in which they make a judgement about funding levels and age 
weightings rather than a more comprehensive Activity Led Funding 
approach. 

 
4.2.2. Additional funding for deprived pupils. The DfE’s states the ‘. . . .  

need to ensure the new funding system reflects the existing funding in 
the system for deprivation, and distributes this in a fair and 
transparent way.’ They emphasise the need to strike the right balance 
between allocating enough to target the most deprived pupils whilst 
leaving enough for other pupils. The consultation also covers what 
deprivation indicator to use. Several are considered including IDACI, 
Benefits data and various Free School Meals (FSM) with the 
recommended option being ‘Ever FSM’ (pupils who are or who have 
ever been eligible for FSM over a given period, both three and six 
years are seen as options). 

 
4.2.3. Protection for small schools. Two options are being considered: a 

lump sum of £95,000 for each primary school (there would not be a 
small school factor for secondary schools); or a sparsity factor. The 
former could be applied to either a school based or pupil based 
formula, the latter would only be suitable in a pupil based one. 

  
4.2.4. An Area Cost Adjustment (ACA). The document begins with a 

background to the General Labour Market approach used in 
calculating the ACA and the regional differences this gives rise to; 
noting that inner London authorities receive 26% more funding than 
those in some other areas. It also notes that teachers have national 
pay bands and that their pay is therefore not simply market driven. 
The document considers a specific cost approach but then rejects it 
as a general approach due to insufficient data. A third combined 
approach is also considered. This uses specific costing for the 
teacher element and a GLM approach for the remainder and this is 
therefore analogous with the hybrid option exemplified in earlier 
consultations and which benefits Haringey. 

 
4.2.5. English as an Additional Language (EAL). The DfE asks whether 

pupils with EAL should attract extra support. The conclusion they 
reach is that deprivation is the key driver of underachievement and 
that pupils whose first language is not English and who are not 
otherwise deprived do not underachieve. The DfE acknowledge that 
such pupils may require additional support in their first school years 

Page 18



and therefore propose a factor covering a pupil’s first three to five 
years only.  

 
4.2.6. Transitional arrangements. The DfE acknowledges that transitional 

arrangements will be necessary and proposes to use the existing 
Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) arrangements to do this. They 
pose two questions; whether to retain the current -1.5% MFG and 
make very slow progress towards redistributing funds or to lower the 
MFG after 2013-14 and increase the rate of change. 

 

The stance taken in respect of the ACA seems to reinforce our belief 
that the DfE have accepted that the anomalous situation in Haringey 
(and a few other London Authorities) should be addressed. However, the 
extent to which schools will actually reap benefit from such a change 
relies heavily on the transitional arrangements and this is a crucial part 
of the consultation. 
 
Similarly in respect of deprivation measure sit is important that we 
argue for measure which recognise our particular circumstances 
including for example pupil mobility which may influence particular 
datasets to a greater or lesser extent. 

 
5.    Central Services and Defining Responsibilities. 
 
5.1. The DfE wants to make the funding system more transparent and 

academy budgets easier to calculate. To help in this endeavour they are 
seeking to clearly define the responsibilities of maintained schools, 
academies and LAs and propose five funding blocks to reflect these 
responsibilities. Four of these blocks equate to what is currently covered 
by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), these are: 

 
1. A schools block to cover 

a. Functions common to all maintained schools, it is expected this 
funding would always be delegated. 

b. Functions where there may be local discretion to retain funding 
centrally, eg contingencies and behavioural support services, for 
maintained schools but not academies, which would receive this 
funding through the Schools Budget element of LACSEG. The 
DfE’s expectation is that these services would be delegated unless 
there was local agreement with the Schools Forum to retain them 
centrally.  

 
2. High Needs Pupil block. The LA remains the commissioner of services 

for high needs pupils, although in practice this may be managed by 
schools and academies as part of delegated funding. It is intended the 
Pupil Referral Units would have delegated budgets.  

 
3. Early years block. This would cover the Early Years Single Funding 

Formula (EYSFF) for both maintained schools and settings in the 

Page 19



Private, Voluntary and Independent (PVI) sectors. It would also cover 
centrally retained early years budgets. 

 
4. Central services block. This covers services that cannot be delegated 

to schools such as a LA’s duty for admissions and contributions to 
combined services. 

 
5.2. A fifth block would cover educational services that are not generally 

focused at individual pupils and which are funded from Formula Grant 
and are therefore outside the DSG. This falls into two groups: 

 
5. General services such as home to school transport that must be 

provided for pupils in all maintained schools and academies. 
 

• Services that will be provided for maintained schools but provided 
through the Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant (LACSEG) 
for academies. Services will include school improvement and LA 
responsibilities such as accounting. 

 
5.3. The resources allocated to each of these blocks will be based on the 

latest LA information on spending on services. 
 
6. Future Arrangements for the Local Authorities Central Spend 

Equivalent Grant (LACSEG). 
 
6.1. LACSEG currently has elements of both the Schools Budget and LA’s 

budget. The DfE want to simplify the arrangements by assuming that all 
elements of the former will be delegated. Depending on the final model 
adopted there may be local discretion to de-delegate items for 
maintained schools or scope for LAs to offer a buyback service. 

 
6.2.  For the LA budget element of LACSEG the DfE is considering the option 

of introducing a national formula basis rather than one based on LA 
Section 251 returns and a distribution mechanism that reflects the actual 
number of academies and where they are located. 

 

Currently the LA element is top-sliced from formula grant. The fairness 
of this has been challenged by LAs as it does not reflect the actual 
distribution of academies. However, under this arrangement the amount 
top-sliced is known, unless the DfE seek to change it mid-term, and 
gives a degree of certainty to LA budgets that would be lost if a more 
flexible approach is taken. 
 
The outcome of the separate LACSEG consultation is awaited. 

 
7. Children and young people requiring high levels of support. 
 
7.1. This block will not cover all children and young people with Special 

Educational Needs (SEN), only those whose need gives rise to ‘high 
cost’, defined by the DfE as over £10,000 per year. The block will cover 

Page 20



children with SEN, post-school learners with learning difficulties and 
disabilities and those who require alternative provision. The block will 
fund pre-16 pupils with funding for post-16 pupils coming from the Young 
Peoples Learning Agency (YPLA). 

 
7.2. The proposals in this chapter are designed to complement the proposals 

in the Green Paper on Special Educational Needs, in particular the 
possibility that control of budgets may be exercised by parents or young 
people and the possibility of introducing a national banded funding 
framework. 

 
7.3. The chapter sets out the principles underlying the proposals, these can 

be summarised as: 
 

• Funding should meet the impartially assessed needs of the pupil. 

• The preferences of the parents or young person should be followed as 
far as practicable but resources should be used efficiently and to best 
effect with appropriate contributions being made by social care and 
health budgets. The LA as commissioning body will meet the cost of 
education. 

• The funding should be subject to review as needs change and the 
effectiveness of the provision should be monitored to ensure that 
appropriate outcomes are achieved. 

• The funding system should be open transparent and consistent and 
make use of expert advice. 

• The system should take account of the specialist nature of the 
provision and provide protection where not all places are filled without 
rewarding inefficiencies. 

 
7.4. The proposals for change are designed to create a level playing field for 

providers of SEN places. The DfE propose to provide a basic sum per 
place or pupil with top up funding from the LA for individual pupils. 

 
7.5. An element for SEN is included within the funding of mainstream schools 

and LAs expect schools to provide some support without any additional 
funds. The DfE will need to make an assumption of what level the 
threshold for mainstream funding is in order to assess what funding 
should be included in the High Needs block. Based on research it is 
proposing a threshold of £6,000 of additional needs plus notional 
universal funding of £4,000 per pupil. Therefore any costs in excess of 
£10,000 would be funded from the High Needs block. 

 
7.6. To preserve a level playing field, special schools and units would be 

funded on a similar basis of £10,000 per place or pupil with a top up for 
the specific needs of a pupil coming from the LA. 

 
7.7. The DfE wish to apply consistent principles to pre and post-16 funding. 

Currently the YPLA provides SEN funding through three different routes, 
the block SEN grant paid to LAs, Additional Learning Support (ALS) paid 

Page 21



to providers and funding for certain high cost placements. The YPLA is 
working to simplify this, possibly through: 

 

• A revised national funding formula for learners with low additional 
needs. 

• Baseline funding of £10,000 for high needs students. 

• A budget provided to an LA to fund costs over £10,000 in places it 
commissions. 

 
7.8. An important issue also addressed in the consultation is whether funding 

should be pupil or place led. Currently, most high cost places are funded 
on a place basis in the belief that ‘- provision of this cost and complexity 
cannot readily be switched on and off, so it is necessary to pay for the 
place and staffing and then look to fill the places as far as possible.’ The 
drawback to this approach is that spare capacity is built in and LAs have 
a financial incentive to place pupils in local provision. The latter conflicts 
with the perception of the LA as commissioner and the desire to have 
special academies operating on a level playing field with maintained 
special schools.  

 
7.9. The great majority of institutions are funded on a per pupil basis but 

given the nature of the provision this carries with it the risk of institutions 
being financially unviable. 

 
7.10.  The options considered in the paper are: 
 

• Serve notice on an intention to move wholly to pupil led funding 
mechanism at a future defined date; 

• Continue to fund on places but make adjustments on a 1,2, or 3 year 
basis where large numbers of places are unfilled (i.e. lagged 
penalties); 

• Fund places in small institutions and use the pupil basis for larger 
institutions on the basis that size will allow for fluctuations to be 
managed; or 

• Adopt a similar approach described earlier to provide base funding (of 
£10,000) with a top up for actual pupils. 

 
8. Funding Special and Alternative Provision (AP) Academies and 

Free Special Schools. 
  
8.1. The consultation paper includes a section considering a range of difficult 

and complex funding issues surrounding potential Special School 
Academies, Alternative Provision Academies and Free Special Schools. 

 
8.2. Much of the complexity arises from the fact that there is little consistency 

present across Local Authorities on which to base funding for such 
establishments; the long term proposal attempts to replicate 
arrangements discussed earlier in the paper – funding of a basic amount 
of £10,000 per place with top-ups for individual pupils. 

 

Page 22



This part of the consultation is extremely complex and needs particular 
and careful consideration. 

 
9. Early Years. 
 
9.1. The Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) is new development. 

Nevertheless, the DfE were considering introducing a national formula. 
The current consultation moves away from this idea with a proposal to 
retain a model of local discretion. 

 
9.2. The DfE identifies problems associated with the current EYSFFs such as 

variability between areas, complexity and lack of transparency and sets 
out proposals to tackle them. 

 
9.3. To reduce complexity the DfE proposes options including: 
 

•••• Removing the ability to have supplements, other than for disadvantage 
and to remove or limit banding. 

 

•••• Consolidating all funding through a single base rate and deprivation 
supplement but they are considering allowing LAs to allocate other 
funding through clearly identifiable lump sums. 

 

•••• Revising guidance to make it clear that supplements should be clear 
and simple with a clearly communicated purpose.  

 
9.4. The DfE also want to reduce the variability in applying the deprivation 

supplement possibly by identifying the value of the supplement, either in 
cash or percentage terms, or to seek greater consistency in the eligibility 
criteria. Another option would be to focus resources at the setting level, 
targeting resources at those in the most deprived areas. 

 
9.5. To improve consistency the DfE is considering two options for funding 

LAs for the free entitlement. The first is to lock in the current spend plus 
methodology. This will give stability at the expense of fairness and 
consistency. 

 
9.6. The second option is to introduce an early years funding formula with 

transitional arrangements to manage initial turbulence. 
 
9.7. A formula would have to be developed for this and it is likely that it will 

mirror the school one and be based on child numbers with deprivation 
and area cost factors and possibly a sparsity factor. Any formula would 
be at LA level and not at individual setting level. 

 
9.8. The DfE are also proposing to promote greater comparison and 

benchmarking between LA funding rates. 
 
10. Pupil Premium. 
 

Page 23



10.1. Consultation on the premium covers two main areas: eligibility for and 
calculation of the premium. The consultation revisits the criteria to be 
used in determining eligibility. It only considers options involving free 
school meals, but proposes expanding coverage to those who have 
been eligible at any time over a given period. Three (Ever 3) and six 
years (Ever 6) are both considered. 

 
10.2.  The Pupil Premium is currently paid on a flat rate and does not take 

account of area cost adjustments or funding already in the system, for 
example for deprivation. The DfE will continue to review this area and 
state that in any case no area cost adjustment would be applied before 
2014-15. 

 

It is disappointing that the unfairness of not having an Area Cost 
Adjustment is not being addressed sooner. 

 
 
11. Timing for Implementation. 
 
11.1. The DfE are proposing to introduce changes in either in 2013-14 or in 

2014-15, the latter being in the next spending review period. To help LAs 
and schools to plan the department will issue a ‘shadow’ settlement in 
spring 2012 for 2012-13. This will also allow for further consultation on 
the details of the formula. 

 
11.2. If the later implementation is chosen the DfE will look to make some 

shorter term changes including: 
 

• Restricting local factors. 

• Improve reporting of formulae by LAs through the use of a pro-forma. 

• Fund academies through the Education Funding Agency (EFA) using 
the LA pro-forma and reducing time-lags. 

• Require automatic delegation of budgets in block 1 in paragraph 5.1. 

• Make changes to the calculation of the LA LACSEG as set out in 
paragraph 6.2. 

• The possible move to a base unit of funding for high needs setting and 
developing the method for funding special and AP academies and free 
schools.  

 

Page 24



Annex 2 

 

Draft Response to Consultation 

 

Chapter 1 - The National Funding System 

In paragraphs 1.8 to 1.14 we discuss two ways we are considering using to calculate the schools block: 

a) A formula based on the schools within the area and the pupils within those schools 

(“School-level”); 

b) A formula based solely on the pupils within the area (“local authority-level”). 

Question 1: Would you prefer the formula to be based on 

a) a notional budget for every school; or 

b) the pupils in each local authority area?  

  

School 

level  
LA level 

 
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The allocation of funds at LA level will allow the locally accountable Schools Forum and 

Council to decide how best to allocate resources to reflect local needs and priorities. 

 

Chapter 2 - The Schools Block - system 

Local flexibility 

In paragraphs 2.6 to 2.9 we discuss local funding formulae and propose reducing the number of 

formula factors which local authorities can apply. We suggest that the local formula factors could 

cover: 

a. Basic entitlement per pupil (currently Age-Weighted Pupil Units) 

b. Funding for additional educational needs (e.g. deprivation, SEN) 

c. Rates 

d. Exceptional site factors (e.g. split site, PFI and rent) 

e. Lump sums for schools  

Question 2: Do you agree that these are the right formula factors to 
retain at a local level? 

  
 All 

 
 Some 

 
 None 

 
 Not Sure 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

Comments: These factors allow scope to fund the material factors affecting schools. 

 

Question 3: What other factors, if any, should be able to be used at local 
level or could any of these factors be removed? 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: There should be sufficient leeway in the lump-sum element to allow for in-year changes 

in circumstances, for example when a school is asked to admit a further form of entry. 

 

Paragraphs. 2.12 to 2.14 discuss primary/secondary ratios: 

Question 4: Do you think that setting a range of allowable primary / secondary ratios around the 

national average is the right approach to ensure that there is consistency across the country? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: There may be local factors that have been agreed that give larger differentials. 

 

Arrangements for Academies 

Paragraphs. 2.17 to 2.22 discuss options for the future of calculating Academies’ budgets. Option (i) 

suggests that local authorities could calculate budgets for all schools in the area and then tell the EFA 

how much Academies should be paid; and Option (ii) that the EFA could calculate Academies’ budgets 

using a pro-forma provided by local authorities setting out their formula factors. 

Question 5: Do you think we should implement option (i) or (ii) when calculating budgets for 

Academies? 

  
 (i) 

 
 (ii) 

 
 Other 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

Comments: (i) This seems by far the most sensible and efficient solution.  

Page 26



 

 

 

Ensuring accountability and fairness 

Paragraphs 2.23 to 2.26 discuss options to improve the working of Schools Forums -  whether the main 

groups on the Forum should all separately have to approve a proposed formula and whether the Forum 

should have more decision making powers.  

Question 6: Do you think these options would help to achieve greater representation and stronger 

accountability at a local level? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Having to get all the main groups to agree could lead to a great deal of dispute, delay and 

horse trading. We believe that Forum members should be trusted to act in the best interests of all 

children in the area and that the Council should respect the Forum’s recommendation.   

 

Paragraphs. 2.27 to 2.31 discuss functions the EFA could provide to ensure scrutiny and challenge at a 

national level. They are (i) checking compliance and/or (ii) acting as a review body. 

Question 7: Do you think we should implement option (i), (ii), both or neither? 

 
(i) 

 
(ii) 

 
Both 

 
Neither 

 
Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: We believe that the local Forum should ensure compliance but that it would be useful to 

have a national body keeping the appropriateness of the formula under review.  

 

 

Arrangements for Free Schools 

Paragraphs 2.33 to 2.35 discuss arrangements for the funding of Free Schools: 

Question 8: If we introduce the new system in this spending review, do you think that Free 

Schools should (i) remain on the Free School methodology for 2013-14 and 2014-15 or (ii) move 

straight away to the overall funding system? 

 
 (i) 

 
 (ii) 

 
 Not Sure 

 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

Chapter 3 - The Schools Block – formula content 

In paragraphs 3.3 to 3.6 we discuss formula content and propose that the new formula could consist of: 

• A basic per-pupil entitlement 

• Additional funding for deprived pupils 

• Protection for small schools  

• An Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) 

• English as an Additional Language (EAL)  

 

Question 9: Are these the right factors to include in a fair funding formula at a national level? 

  
 All 

 
 Some 

 
 None 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: These seem to be the minimum number of factors necessary to keep the formula as 

simple and transparent as possible and whilst covering the essential variables.  

 

 

 

Deprivation 

Paragraphs 3.14 to 3.17 discuss possible indicators we could use in a national formula for reflecting 

deprivation. 

Question 10: Do you agree that we should use Ever FSM to allocate deprivation funding in the 

national formula? Should this be Ever 3 or Ever 6?  

 

  
 Ever 3 

 
Ever 6 

 
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The use of current entitlement is the simplest method and one every head teacher can 

check. Extending the measure to Ever 3 or Ever 6 complicates the calculation and reduces 

transparency, as there is a fixed sum for distribution a larger population will mean a lower per pupil 

sum. As the funding goes to schools rather than pupils, we question whether the greater complexity 

Page 28



 will actually confer any advantage at school level.  

 

Small school protection 

Paragraphs. 3.19 to 3.28 discusses funding protection for small schools, 
suggesting that a £95,000 lump sum would be sufficient to provide protection, 
that it should be applicable to primary schools only and should adopt Middle 
Super Output Areas to derive the sparsity factor. If a local authority formula is 
used a choice between a lump sum payment and a sparsity measure is 
offered and there is also discussion on whether the threshold for eligibility 
should be narrowed so that sparsity funding is focused on the most sparsely 
populated areas. 

 

Question 11: If we have a school-level formula, do you agree that 
£95,000 is an appropriate amount for a primary school lump sum? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments:  

 

 

Question 12: Do you agree that the lump sum should be limited to 
schools with Year 6 as the highest year-group? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

 

Question 13: If we have a local authority-level formula, should we use a 
primary school lump sum or the sparsity measure? 

Page 29



  

 Primary 

School 

lump 

sum 

 

Sparsity 

Measure  
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: A scarcity measure will not allow for any support for small schools in urban areas. 

 

 

Question 14: If we have a sparsity measure, do you think we should 
narrow the sparsity threshold as described above? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

 

Area Cost Adjustments 

Paragraphs 3.29 to 3.33 (and annex D) discuss approaches to calculating the area cost adjustment. 

Question 15: Which option should we use to calculate the Area Cost Adjustment: the current 

GLM approach or the combined approach?  

  

GLM 

Approach  

Combined 

Approach  
 Other 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The unfairness of the current Area Cost Adjustment for the six London Authorities 

treated as outer London but paying inner London weighting is not being tackled urgently enough. 

Action should be taken in April 2012 to tackle this injustice. 

 

 

English as an Additional Language and Underperforming Ethnic Groups 

Page 30



Paragraphs 3.34 to 3.38 considers what further factors of underachievement there might be for school 

age pupils and proposes the inclusion of an EAL factor in a national formula. 

Question 16: Do you agree that we should use an EAL factor in the national formula? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This should not be the main deprivation measure, but the additional support required in 

ALL schools in the initial years should be recognised. 

 

Question 17: Do you agree that this should cover the first few years only? How many years would 

be appropriate? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: First three full financial years. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transitional Arrangements 

Paragraphs 3.39 to 3.41 discuss transitional arrangements to minimise 
turbulence. 

 

Question 18: Do you think we should: 

(a) Continue with a maximum decrease of -1.5% per pupil each year and 
accept that this will mean very slow progress towards full system 
reform; or 

(b) Continue with a -1.5% per pupil floor in 2013-14 but lower it thereafter 
so that we can make faster progress? 

  
 (a) 

 
(b) 

 
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

Comments: Whereas a degree of protection is required we should address the inequities in the current 

system and move as quickly as possible to a needs led methodology.  

 

Chapter 4 - Central services and defining responsibilities  

 

Paragraphs 4.1 to 4.7 discuss the development of a funding model, having first defined the respective 

responsibilities of maintained schools, Academies and local authorities. The model would clarify what 

elements of funding would be delegated to schools or centrally retained for maintained schools, if there 

is local discretion. 

 

Question 19: Do you agree that some of these services could be retained centrally if there is local 

agreement by maintained schools? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The rationale for Schools Fora is to provide the local knowledge that is not available at 

national level. Schools Fora should be trusted to act in the best interests of pupils. 

 

 

Paragraphs 4.8 to 4.13 set out details of the funding blocks which make up the funding model and their 

functions. Funding blocks for schools, High Needs Pupils, early years, central services and formula 

grant are proposed.  

 

Question 20: Do you agree that the split of functions between the blocks is correct? If not, what 

changes should be made? 

  

 Completely 

Correct  

Broadly, 

but some 

changes 

required 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The exclusion of Home to School transport from the DSG remains a mystery. 

Page 32



 

 

Chapter 5 - Future arrangements for the Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant 

(LACSEG)  

Paragraphs 5.1 to 5.9 discuss the future arrangements for the calculation of LACSEG. 

  

Question 21: Do you think the funding for local authority LACSEG should be moved to a 

national formula basis rather than using individual LA section 251 returns?  

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Yes, but it should reflect a realistic apportionment of the Formula Grant allocation. 

 

Question 22: Do you think the distribution mechanism should be changed to one that more 

accurately reflects the actual pattern of where Academies are located?  

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This is the fairest option. 

 

Chapter 6 - Children and Young People requiring high levels of support 

 

Principles 

Paragraph. 6.7 sets out the high level principles behind the proposals for funding children and young 

people with high levels of need.  

.   

Question 23: Is this the right set of principles for funding children and young people with high 

needs? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

Page 33



 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

 

A Base Level of Funding for High Needs SEN 

 

Paragraphs 6.11 to 6.18 discuss proposals to set a base level of funding to reflect high needs SEN. 

Question 24: Would it be appropriate to provide a base level of funding per pupil or place to all 

specialist SEN and LD/D settings, with individualised top up above that? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This appears to be a practical approach. 

 

Question 25: Is £10,000 an appropriate level for this funding?  

  
 Yes 

 

No – too 

high  

No – too 

low  
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This closely accords with Haringey Council’s current approach. 

 

Applying this approach to post-16 

Paragraphs 6.19 to 6.21 discuss proposals for funding high needs pupils to post -16 pupils. 

 

Page 34



Question 26: Is the idea of a base rate of funding helpful in the post-16 context?  

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Yes, but given the higher cost of 16+ provision consideration should be given to raising 

the threshold above £10k to reflect this. 

 

Question 27: Should local authorities be directly responsible for funding high level costs over 

£10,000 for young people in post-16 provision in line with their commissioning responsibilities? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This seems to be a rational approach. 

Question 28: Do the proposed funding arrangements create risks to any parts of the post-16 

sector? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: See response to question 26. 

 

Funding by Places or Pupil Numbers 

 

Paras 6.22 to 6.26 discuss whether institutions providing for high needs children and young people 

should be funded on the basis of planned places or pupil numbers. It also sets out four options for doing 

so.  

Question  29: Should institutions providing for high needs children and young people be funded 

on the basis of places or pupil numbers? 

Page 35



 
 Places 

 
 Pupil Numbers 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: A pragmatic approach should be taken to ensure efficient provision does not become 

financially unviable. 

 

Question 30: Are any of options (a)-(d) desirable? 

 
(a) 

 
(b) 

 
(c) 

 
(d) 

 
None 

 

Not 

Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This seems to be consistent with other proposals on high needs pupils. 

 

Funding Special and AP Academies and Free Schools 

Paragraphs 6.27 to 6.39 discuss how funding for special and AP Academies and Free Schools should 

be managed in the short term and, in the longer term, whether funding should be routed through the 

Education Funding Agency (EFA) or the commissioner. 

 

Question 31: For the longer term, should we fund Special and AP Academies and Free Schools: 

a) with all funding coming direct from the commissioner? 

b) with all funding coming through the EFA and recouped from the commissioner? 

c) through a combination of basic funding from the EFA and top-up funding for individual 

pupils direct from the commissioner? 

 
(a) 

 
(b) 

 
(c) 

 
Neither 

 
Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: This seems consistent with the approach taken on high needs pupils. 

 

Page 36



Question 32: If we go for the combination funding approach, should we pass all funding through 

the EFA for a limited period while the school is establishing itself before moving to this 

approach?   

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

Constructing the High Needs Block for local authorities 

 

Paragraphs 6.40 to 6.47 propose a new formula for determining the High Needs Block building on the 

research carried out for the Department by PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2009. 

Question 33: Given there is no absolute method of determining which pupils have high needs, 

and given local variation in policy and recording, is this approach to determining proxy variables 

acceptable?  

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: No formula is perfect and these seem reasonable proxy measures for high needs SEN; 

however, it is important that sufficient resources are allocated for alternative provision for which 

deprivation will be the best proxy.  

 

Question 34: Do you agree that deprivation is linked more to AP rather than the wider SEN 

needs? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Yes, see preceding answer. 

Page 37



 

Paragraphs 6.48 to 6.49 suggest the need for substantial transitional arrangements in moving to a new 

formula as the formula will fail to reflect the spend of local authorities on high need pupils.   

Question 35: Do you agree that in the short term we should base allocations to local authorities 

for the high needs block largely on historic spend? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Transitional arrangements will be needed to prevent excessive turbulence. 

 

Post-16 

Paragraph 6.50 proposes aligning pre- and post-16 funding for high needs pupils over time. 

Question 36: Do you agree that post-16 funding should also become part of the local authority’s 

high needs block over time, but that there might be a particular need for transitional 

arrangements? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: In principle. This will create a more seamless provision for young people with special 

needs but it will require adequate resources to be provides. Local authorities have long argued that the 

funding provided for 16+ SEN falls far short of what is needed and this needs to be addressed within 

the new formula.  

 

Question 37: What data should ideally underpin the funding allocations both initially and for a 

potential high needs block arrangement? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

Page 38



 

Issues Specific to Alternative Provision 

 

Paragraphs 6.51 to 6.56 highlight issues specific to AP provision but suggest that AP should continue 

to be treated alongside SEN for funding purposes. 

NB: Questions 38 is displayed together with question 39 in the document.  

Question 38: Should AP continue to be treated alongside high needs SEN for funding purposes? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

 

 

Question 39: What differences between them need to be taken into account? 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The link between AP and deprivation proxies will make devising a formula easier. More 

work is required at looking at costs.  

 

 

Early Years 

 

Paragraphs 7.5 to 7.8 set out current arrangements for early years funding and discuss whether the 

Early Years Single Funding Formula could be made simpler: 

 

Question 40: Do you agree we should aim for a simpler EYSFF? If so, how? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

Comments: We have worked hard to agree a EYSFF that suits our local circumstances. In Haringey it 

has been in place for half a financial year and it is therefore too early to draw conclusions on national 

changes. 

Page 39



 

 

 
Paragraphs 7.9 to 7.11 sets out options for improving the focus on tackling 
disadvantage and improving consistency in the support offered to 
disadvantaged children.  
 
Question 41: How could we refine the EYSFF so that it better supports 
disadvantaged children? 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: We have placed significant emphasis on deprivation factor within our EYSFF. In 

Haringey it has been in place for half a financial year and it is therefore too early to draw conclusions 

on national changes.  

 
 
Bringing more consistency to free early education funding 
 

Paragraphs 7.12 to 7.15 consider two options for continuing to fund local authorities for free early 

education: on the basis of their current spend or on the basis of a formula. 

Question 42: Do you agree we should allocate funding to local 
authorities on the basis of a formula? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: Using a formula is consistent with your proposals in other areas and seems to be the best 

way to progress. 

 
Paragraphs 7.16 to 7.18 discuss how a formula to local authorities for funding 
early years would operate. 
 
 
Question 43: Do you agree a formula should be introduced based largely 
on the same factors as the schools formula? 

Page 40



 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

 

 

 

Bringing greater transparency to free early education funding 

 

Paragraphs 7.19 to 7.20 discuss what has been done so far to improve transparency and our plans for 

the future. 

Question 44: We would be grateful for views on whether anything else can be done to improve 

transparency. 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: 

 

Pupil Premium 

 

Paragraphs 8.1 to 8.8 set out two options for extending the coverage of the pupil premium to include 

pupils previously eligible for Free School Meals: an ‘ever 3’ measure or an ‘ever 6’ measure which 

extend cover to those eligible for FSM at some point in the last three or six years. 

 

Question 45: What is your preferred option for determining eligibility for the Pupil Premium 

from 2012-13? Should it be based on the Ever 3 or Ever 6 measure? 

  
 Ever 3 

 
Ever 6 

 
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

Comments: Current eligibility is a simple and transparent measure that can easily be checked by head 

teachers. The use of Ever 3 or Ever 6, whilst increasing the number of pupils eligible will presumably 

reduce the level of support per child as there is no reason to believe the quantum of national funding 

Page 41



 

 

 

will increase. If the pattern of Ever 3 or Ever 6 mirrors the general distribution of FSM eligibility then 

it is hard to see what advantage  a more complicated and less transparent methodology would give. 

 

Paragraphs 8.9 to 8.10 seek views on other issues for calculating the pupil premium, such as whether to 

reflect differences in funding already in the system.  

 

 

 

Question 46: What is your preferred approach for calculating the Pupil Premium? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The Pupil Premium should be kept as simple as possible but should reflect the local costs 

of providing education and should therefore include an area cost adjustment. 

 

Timing for implementation 

Paragraphs 9.1 to 9.4 consider the issue of when to begin the process of moving to a new funding 

formula. 

 

Question 47: Do you think we should implement the proposed reforms in 2013-14 or during the 

next spending period? 

  
 2013-14 

 

Next 

Spending 

Period  
 Neither 

 
 Not Sure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: The changes should take place as soon as possible, as 2012-13 is not now feasible 

changes should be made in 2013-14. However, the significant disadvantage faced by the six London 

authorities paying inner London weighting but funded as outer London authorities should be 

addressed more urgently with the unfairness rectified through a short term adjustment in the 2012-13 

funding. 

 

 

Question 48: Have you any further comments? 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments: We wish to express our grave concern that the disadvantage faced by our pupils through 

the iniquity of the area cost adjustment will continue for at least a further year. The Department’s 

response to the consultation undertaken by the previous government acknowledged this unfairness as 

did the comments made by the Secretary of State when visiting one of our schools. We appreciate 

that there will be overall changes to the method of funding schools and that these cannot be 

introduced in 2012-13 but ask that our children are not disadvantaged further by introducing interim 

measures in 2012-13.  

Page 43



Thank you for taking the time to let us have your views. We do not intend to 
acknowledge individual responses unless you place an 'X' in the box below. 

 

Please acknowledge this reply  

 

Here at the Department for Education we carry out our research on many 
different topics and consultations. As your views are valuable to us, would it 
be alright if we were to contact you again from time to time either for research 
or to send through consultation documents? 

 

   Yes       No 

 

All DfE public consultations are required to conform to the following criteria 
within the Government Code of Practice on Consultation: 

Criterion 1: Formal consultation should take place at a stage when there is 
scope to influence the policy outcome. 
 
Criterion 2: Consultations should normally last for at least 12 weeks with 
consideration given to longer timescales where feasible and sensible. 
 
Criterion 3: Consultation documents should be clear about the consultation 
process, what is being proposed, the scope to influence and the expected 
costs and benefits of the proposals. 
 
Criterion 4: Consultation exercises should be designed to be accessible to, 
and clearly targeted at, those people the exercise is intended to reach. 
 
Criterion 5: Keeping the burden of consultation to a minimum is essential if 
consultations are to be effective and if consultees’ buy-in to the process is to 
be obtained. 
 
Criterion 6: Consultation responses should be analysed carefully and clear 
feedback should be provided to participants following the consultation. 
 
Criterion 7: Officials running consultations should seek guidance in how to run 
an effective consultation exercise and share what they have learned from the 
experience. 

If you have any comments on how DfE consultations are conducted, please 
contact Carole Edge, DfE Consultation Co-ordinator, tel: 01928 738060 / 
email: carole.edge@education.gsi.gov.uk 

Page 44



Thank you for taking time to respond to this consultation. 

Completed questionnaires and other responses should be sent to the address 
shown below by 11 October 2011 

Send by e-mail to: schoolfunding.consultation@education.gsi.gov.uk 

Send by post to:  

Consultation Unit 
Area 1C 
Castle View House 
Runcorn 
Cheshire 
WA7 2GJ  

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Distribution of Full-Time Places

School. Max

 Alexandra Primary 20

 Belmont Infant 0

 Bounds Green Infant 20

 Broadwater Farm Primary 30

 Bruce Grove Primary 0

 Campsbourne Infant 10

 Coldfall Primary 10

 Coleridge Primary 0

 Crowland Primary 30

 Devonshire Hill Primary 50

 Downhills Primary 0

 Earlham Primary 0

 Earlsmead Primary 0

 Ferry Lane Primary 0

 The Green CE Primary 20

 Highgate Primary 10

 Lancasterian Primary 0

 Lea Valley Primary 0

 Lordship Lane Primary 10

Mulberry Primary 0

 Nightingale Primary 20

 Noel Park Primary 15

North Harringay Primary 10

 Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary 0

 Rhodes Avenue Primary 0

 Risley Avenue Primary 20

 Rokesly Infant 0

 St.Aidan's Primary 10

 St.Ann's CE Primary 25

 St.Francis de Sales RC Infant 10

 St.Ignatius RC Primary 0

 St.James' CE Primary 0

 St.John Vianney RC Primary 0

 St.Martin of Porres RC Primary 0

 St.Mary's CE Infant 0

 St.Mary's RC Infant 0

 St.Michael's CE Primary N6 0

 St.Michael's CE Primary N22

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Infant 50

 Seven Sisters Primary 20

 South Harringay Infant 0

 Stamford Hill Primary 50

 Stroud Green Primary 50

 Tiverton Primary 40

 Welbourne Primary 30

 West Green Primary 0

Weston Park Primary 0

560

Pembury 45

Rowland Hill 45

Woodlands Park 25

675

Agenda Item 9Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 Distribution of Full-Time Places

School. Max

 Alexandra Primary 20

 Belmont Infant 0

 Bounds Green Infant 20

 Broadwater Farm Primary 30

 Bruce Grove Primary 0

 Campsbourne Infant 10

 Coldfall Primary 10

 Coleridge Primary 0

 Crowland Primary 30

 Devonshire Hill Primary 50

 Downhills Primary 0

 Earlham Primary 0

 Earlsmead Primary 0

 Ferry Lane Primary 0

 The Green CE Primary 20

 Highgate Primary 10

 Lancasterian Primary 0

 Lea Valley Primary 0

 Lordship Lane Primary 10

Mulberry Primary 0

 Nightingale Primary 20

 Noel Park Primary 15

North Harringay Primary 10

 Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary 0

 Rhodes Avenue Primary 0

 Risley Avenue Primary 20

 Rokesly Infant 0

 St.Aidan's Primary 10

 St.Ann's CE Primary 25

 St.Francis de Sales RC Infant 10

 St.Ignatius RC Primary 0

 St.James' CE Primary 0

 St.John Vianney RC Primary 0

 St.Martin of Porres RC Primary 0

 St.Mary's CE Infant 0

 St.Mary's RC Infant 0

 St.Michael's CE Primary N6 0

 St.Michael's CE Primary N22

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Infant 50

 Seven Sisters Primary 20

 South Harringay Infant 0

 Stamford Hill Primary 50

 Stroud Green Primary 50

 Tiverton Primary 40

 Welbourne Primary 30

 West Green Primary 0

Weston Park Primary 0

560

Pembury 45

Rowland Hill 45

Woodlands Park 25

675

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MEMBERSHIP
	6 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 14 JULY 2011
	8 CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL FUNDING REFORM
	9 REVIEW OF FULL TIME NURSERY PLACES
	Item 9 Appendix 1


